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Brothers, Sheila C

From: Hippisley, Andrew R
Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2012 11:35 AM
To: Brothers, Sheila C
Subject: new programs for forthcoming SC

Hi Sheila, 
 
Here goes. 
 
1    This is a recommendation that the University Senate approve the establishment of a new graduate 
certificate: Risk Sciences, in the Division of Risk Sciences within the College of Communication and 
Information [new name?]. 
 
2    This is a recommendation that the University Senate approve the establishment of a new minor: Visual 
Studies, within the College of Fine Arts. 
 
3    This is a recommendation that the University Senate approve the establishment of a new graduate 
certificate: Stream and Watershed Science, in the Department of Biosystems and Agricultural Engineering 
within the College of Agriculture.  
 
4    This is a recommendation that the University Senate approve the establishment of a new minor: 
Neuroscience, in the Department of Biology within the College of Arts and Sciences. 
 
5    This is a recommendation that the University Senate approve the establishment of a new undergraduate 
certificate: Global Scholars, in the Gatton College of Business and Economics [Sheila, can we talk about this 
one?] 
 
Best, 
 
Andrew  
 
Dr Andrew Hippisley 
Assoc. Prof.  of Linguistics 
Linguistics Program Director  
Department of English 
1377 Patterson Office Tower 
University of Kentucky 
Lexington,  Kentucky 40506-0027 USA  
andrew.hippisley@uky.edu 
+1-859 2576989 
fax (859) 323 1072 
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Response	
  to	
  Faculty	
  Senate	
  Queries	
  

1. As	
  a	
  program	
  in	
  risk	
  SCIENCES,	
  please	
  clarify	
  what	
  research	
  methods	
  will	
  
be	
  covered,	
  and	
  identify	
  the	
  courses	
  which	
  cover	
  them.	
  
	
  
Assignments	
  outlined	
  for	
  the	
  courses,	
  including	
  the	
  needs	
  assessment	
  (training	
  &	
  
consulting),	
  risk	
  communication	
  analysis	
  (risk),	
  crisis	
  assessment	
  (crisis),	
  and	
  
practice	
  evaluation	
  (knowledge	
  management)	
  all	
  require	
  social	
  scientific	
  research	
  
employing	
  both	
  quantitative	
  and	
  qualitative	
  methods,	
  primarily	
  survey	
  and	
  
interview	
  methods	
  for	
  background	
  research.	
  In	
  additional,	
  all	
  four	
  courses	
  include	
  
examination	
  of	
  theoretical	
  concepts	
  based	
  on	
  empirical	
  research.	
  	
  
	
  
We	
  should	
  note	
  that	
  risk	
  sciences	
  is	
  the	
  term	
  used	
  by	
  the	
  National	
  Science	
  
Foundation	
  to	
  describe	
  communication	
  research	
  in	
  risk	
  and	
  crisis	
  contexts.	
  NSF's	
  
decision,	
  risk	
  and	
  management	
  sciences	
  division	
  is	
  a	
  primary	
  funding	
  source	
  for	
  
faculty	
  research	
  in	
  this	
  area.	
  	
  Therefore,	
  our	
  rationale	
  for	
  choosing	
  the	
  name	
  Risk	
  
Sciences	
  is	
  that	
  it	
  not	
  only	
  encompasses	
  the	
  scientific,	
  research-­‐driven	
  study	
  of	
  each	
  
of	
  the	
  areas	
  reflected	
  in	
  the	
  courses	
  designed	
  for	
  the	
  certificate	
  but	
  also	
  aligns	
  with	
  
our	
  primary	
  funding	
  source's	
  description	
  of	
  risk	
  sciences	
  
	
  

2. Will	
  online-­designed	
  courses	
  be	
  available	
  to	
  PhD	
  candidates	
  to	
  replace	
  
traditionally	
  taught	
  courses?	
  	
  If	
  not,	
  how	
  will	
  this	
  be	
  prevented?	
  If	
  so,	
  
can	
  you	
  argue	
  that	
  such	
  courses	
  are	
  suitable	
  for	
  PhD	
  students?	
  
	
  
The	
  three	
  courses	
  that	
  will	
  be	
  available	
  to	
  communication	
  PhD	
  students	
  are	
  CJT	
  721	
  
Risk	
  Communication,	
  CJT	
  722	
  Crisis	
  Communication,	
  and	
  CJT	
  723	
  Training	
  and	
  
Consulting.	
  These	
  three	
  courses	
  are	
  offered	
  as	
  hybrid	
  courses,	
  comprising	
  both	
  face-­‐
to-­‐face	
  meetings	
  and	
  online	
  interaction.	
  The	
  current	
  CJT	
  course	
  proposals	
  are	
  
designed	
  for	
  online	
  interaction	
  for	
  the	
  readings	
  and	
  lecture	
  early	
  in	
  the	
  semester,	
  an	
  
intense	
  weekend	
  seminar	
  for	
  discussion	
  and	
  project	
  development,	
  and	
  online	
  
interaction	
  for	
  follow-­‐up	
  through	
  the	
  completion	
  of	
  the	
  assigned	
  paper	
  or	
  project.	
  
Throughout	
  these	
  courses,	
  face-­‐to-­‐face	
  and	
  synchronous	
  online	
  class	
  meetings	
  and	
  
office	
  hours	
  will	
  be	
  held.	
  CJT	
  doctoral	
  students	
  choosing	
  to	
  pursue	
  this	
  graduate	
  
certificate	
  in	
  risk	
  science	
  may	
  count	
  the	
  three	
  CJT	
  courses	
  proposed	
  here	
  toward	
  
their	
  degree;	
  the	
  courses	
  could	
  count	
  toward	
  nine	
  of	
  12	
  hours	
  required	
  for	
  the	
  “area	
  
of	
  specialization”	
  portion	
  of	
  their	
  program	
  of	
  study.	
  The	
  remaining	
  three	
  hours	
  of	
  
“specialization,”	
  along	
  with	
  the	
  hours	
  required	
  for	
  “theory	
  and	
  context,”	
  “research	
  
methods/statistics,”	
  “cognate	
  area,”	
  and	
  “research	
  problems”	
  would	
  be	
  fulfilled	
  
through	
  existing	
  courses	
  in	
  the	
  graduate	
  program.	
  

	
  
This	
  hybrid	
  model	
  is	
  important	
  to	
  both	
  traditional	
  PhD	
  students	
  and	
  professionals	
  
already	
  working	
  in	
  risk	
  science	
  fields.	
  	
  It	
  encourages	
  working	
  professionals	
  to	
  enroll	
  
in	
  the	
  classes,	
  which	
  adds	
  considerable	
  value	
  to	
  the	
  discussion	
  of	
  the	
  theoretical	
  
models	
  and	
  methodological	
  procedures	
  presented	
  in	
  class.	
  PhD	
  students	
  who	
  intend	
  
to	
  work	
  as	
  consultants	
  or	
  research	
  analysts	
  in	
  practice	
  or	
  continue	
  on	
  in	
  an	
  
academic	
  career	
  teaching	
  courses	
  in	
  risk	
  and	
  crisis	
  related	
  areas	
  will	
  greatly	
  benefit	
  



from	
  having	
  practitioners	
  in	
  the	
  class.	
  Likewise,	
  practitioners	
  will	
  benefit	
  from	
  
interacting	
  with	
  students	
  already	
  well-­‐versed	
  in	
  communication	
  theory	
  and	
  
research	
  methods.	
  	
  

	
  
LIS	
  658	
  Knowledge	
  Management	
  is	
  entirely	
  online	
  and	
  is	
  part	
  of	
  the	
  Library	
  and	
  
Information	
  Science	
  master’s	
  degree	
  program,	
  which	
  also	
  is	
  offered	
  entirely	
  online.	
  
PhD	
  students	
  in	
  communication	
  may	
  take	
  the	
  course,	
  but	
  it	
  would	
  not	
  count	
  toward	
  
their	
  program’s	
  core	
  requirements.	
  	
  
	
  

3.	
  	
  Why	
  are	
  three	
  of	
  the	
  proposed	
  courses	
  pitched	
  at	
  the	
  700	
  level?	
  	
  Can’t	
  
they	
  all	
  be	
  at	
  600	
  level?	
  
	
  
and	
  

4.	
  	
  Can	
  a	
  700	
  level	
  course	
  in	
  theory	
  comprise	
  students	
  with	
  MAs	
  and	
  lower	
  
degrees?	
  

The	
  three	
  proposed	
  CJT	
  courses	
  are	
  offered	
  at	
  the	
  700-­‐level	
  to	
  assist	
  us	
  in	
  assuring	
  
traditional	
  master’s	
  and	
  PhD	
  students	
  will	
  have	
  already	
  completed	
  their	
  
introductory	
  theory	
  and	
  methods	
  courses	
  before	
  taking	
  these	
  context	
  specific	
  
courses.	
  	
  

A	
  700	
  level	
  course	
  can	
  accommodate	
  students	
  with	
  MAs	
  and	
  lower	
  degrees.	
  The	
  
final	
  papers	
  for	
  traditional	
  communication	
  graduate	
  students	
  enrolled	
  in	
  the	
  
proposed	
  courses	
  are	
  expected	
  to	
  be	
  of	
  academic	
  journal	
  quality.	
  Post-­‐baccalaureate	
  
students	
  and	
  those	
  with	
  graduate	
  degrees	
  in	
  other	
  areas	
  seeking	
  the	
  stand	
  alone	
  
certificate	
  will	
  have	
  the	
  option	
  of	
  completing	
  either	
  research	
  papers	
  like	
  CJT	
  
graduate	
  students	
  or	
  conducting	
  theory-­‐based	
  applied	
  projects,	
  which	
  still	
  will	
  be	
  
based	
  on	
  the	
  research	
  presented	
  in	
  class	
  but	
  will	
  be	
  applied	
  to	
  address	
  an	
  
organizational	
  need.	
  For	
  example,	
  practitioners	
  may	
  choose	
  to	
  conduct	
  a	
  risk	
  
assessment	
  for	
  their	
  employing	
  organization	
  and	
  compile	
  the	
  results	
  in	
  a	
  report	
  that	
  
will	
  be	
  delivered	
  to	
  organizational	
  management	
  rather	
  than	
  a	
  manuscript	
  that	
  will	
  
be	
  submitted	
  to	
  an	
  academic	
  journal.	
  In	
  essence,	
  the	
  applied	
  projects	
  constitute	
  
translational	
  research	
  in	
  which	
  theory	
  is	
  adapted	
  to	
  solve	
  problems	
  faced	
  by	
  
practitioners.	
  

The	
  purpose	
  of	
  engaging	
  practitioners	
  and	
  traditional	
  master’s	
  and	
  PhD	
  students	
  in	
  
the	
  same	
  class	
  is	
  to	
  encourage	
  discussion	
  of	
  risk	
  and	
  crisis	
  from	
  multiple	
  
perspectives.	
  Trained	
  biases	
  in	
  risk	
  sciences	
  can	
  be	
  costly	
  and	
  even	
  deadly.	
  It	
  is	
  
crucial	
  for	
  academic	
  researchers	
  and	
  practitioners	
  to	
  understand	
  challenges	
  and	
  
expectations	
  beyond	
  their	
  education	
  and	
  personal	
  life	
  experiences.	
  Practitioners	
  
pursuing	
  the	
  stand	
  alone	
  certificate	
  can	
  benefit	
  greatly	
  from	
  gaining	
  a	
  better	
  
understanding	
  of	
  theory	
  and	
  research	
  in	
  risk	
  sciences.	
  Traditional	
  students	
  pursuing	
  
the	
  graduate	
  certificate	
  as	
  an	
  addition	
  to	
  their	
  studies	
  can	
  benefit	
  greatly	
  from	
  
gaining	
  a	
  better	
  understanding	
  of	
  the	
  application	
  of	
  risk	
  sciences	
  theory	
  and	
  
research	
  in	
  practice.	
  



December 15, 2011

TO: Hollie Swanson
Senate Council
201 Main Bldg.
CAMPUS 0032

Dear Dr. Swanson,

I am transmitting to you the Proposal for the Graduate Certificate in Risk Sciences. The 
Graduate Council approved this proposal on December 15, 2011.

Sincerely Yours,

Brian Jackson, Senior Associate Dean
The Graduate School

Cc: Sheila Brothers

Dr. Brian A. 
Jackson

Digitally signed by Dr. Brian A. Jackson 
DN: cn=Dr. Brian A. Jackson, 
o=University of Kentucky, 
ou=Graduate School, email, c=US 
Date: 2011.12.15 16:05:58 -05'00'
























